
method of arbitrarily partitioning territories with 
the aid of maps and without any consideration 
for the rights of the people concerned, led to 
nothing but distress, hatred and the desire for 
vengeance, thus creating permanent insecurity. 

The delegation of Yemen was opposed to the 
Mediator's proposals not only for the above-men­
tioned reasons but because it could not recognize 
the creation of a Jewish State by a heterogenous 
crowd of invaders who were attempting to drive 
out the native population, perpetrating nameless 
atrocities against them and reducing them to 
misery. There was not equity, justice nor 
common sense in permitting the Arab population 
of more than 600,000 persons in Palestine to suffer 
massacre or to be driven from their homes in 
order to provide a homeland for the Jews who had 
been driven out of their countries through no 
fault of the Arabs. 

The whole world was indignant at the perse­
cution of the Jews by the Nazi regime. Why 
was it not also indignant when the Jews used the 
same methods of extermination against the peace­
ful population of Palestine ? 

The representative of Yemen said that the Arabs 
had gone as far as they were able in the way of 
concessions to the Jewish intruders. They had 
offered to establish a unitary government ensuring 
equal rights to Jews and Arabs alike. They 
had even proposed to establish a cantonal or 
federal State on the pattern of Switzerland or the 
United States. Neither the conscience of the 
Arab leaders, nor the will of their people would 
permit any further concessions which alienated 
the natural rights of the people of Palestine. The 
Arabs could not give way any further to inter­
national pressure which was seeking to force them 
to satisfy the Jewish demands. The Jews 
should realize that it was not in their real interests 
to press ever-growing demands. They should 
understand that decisions which were not based 
on justice and equity were doomed to failure in 
the long run. Prince Abdullah stated that the 
delegation of Yemen was anxious to bring about 
an equitable solution which would remove hatred 
and create an atmosphere of peace and justice 
in Palestine. 

Mr. ARSLAN (Syria) replied to the represen­
tative of Guatemala who had stated that the Jews 
possessed a legal right to a Palestine homeland 
on the basis of the Lausanne Treaty. He consid­
ered that view to be completely erroneous and 
recalled that at a previous session of the Assembly 
he had urged that the question be referred to the 
International Court of Justice. 

The meeting rose at 5.05 p.m. 

·TWO HUNDRED AND SIXTH 
MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Monday, 22 November 1948, at 10.30 a.m. 

Chairmvn : M. A. CosTA nu RELs (Bolivia) 

tribution des territoires. L'histoire montrera 
que Ia methode qui consiste a partager arbi­
trairement des territoires sans tenir aucun compte 
des droits des peuples interesses n'aboutit qu'a 
Ia detresse, a Ia haine et au desir de vengeance, 
creant ainsi un etat d'insecurite permanente. 

La delegation du Yemen s'oppose aux propo­
sitions du Mediateur non seulement pour les 
raisons qui precedent, mais aussi parce qu'elle 
ne peut reconnaitre la creation d'un Etat juif 
par une foule heterogene d'envahisseurs qui 
s'efforcent de chasser la population indigene, en 
perpetrant contre elle des atrocites sans nom et 
en Ia reduisant a Ia misere. C'est ne faire preuve 
ni d'equite, ni de justice, ni de bon sens, que de 
permettre que la population arabe de Palestine 
subisse des massacres ou que plus de 600.000 
Arabes soient chasses de leurs foyers afin de 
procurer une patrie aux Juifs qui ont ete expulses 
de leurs pays, sans que ces Arabes en soient aucu­
nement responsables. 

Le monde entier s'est indigne des persecutions 
de Juifs par le regime nazi. Pourquoi ne s'indigne­
t-il pas lorsque les Juifs emploient les memes 
methodes d'extermination contre les populations 
paisibles de Palestine ? 

Le representant du Yemen considere en outre 
que les Arabes ont ete aussi loin qu'ils le pouvaient 
dans Ia voie des concessions a l'egard des usur­
pateurs juifs. Ils ont propose !'institution d'un 
Gouvernement unitaire, assurant des droits egaux 
tant aux .Juifs qu'aux Arabes. lis ont meme 
propose d'etablir un Etat cantonal ou federal 
sur le modele de la Suisse ou des Etats-Unis. 
Ni la conscience des chefs Arabes, ni Ia volonte de 
leurs peuples ne permettront d'autres concessions, 
qui alieneraient les droits naturels des peuples 
de Ia Palestine. Les Arabes ne peuvent ceder 
davantage a Ia pression internationale qui s'efforce 
de les contraindre a satisfaire les exigences juives. 
Les Juifs doivent comprendre qu'il n'est pas de 
leur interet reel d'insister sur des exigences de 
plus en plus grandes. lis doivent comprendre 
que des decisions qui ne reposent pas sur Ia justice 
et l'equite sont tot ou tard condamnees a l'echec. 
Le prince Abdullah declare que la delegation du 
Yemen est extremement desireuse d'aboutir a 
une solution equitable, susceptible de faire dispa­
raitre Ia haine et de creer en Palestine unc atmos­
phere de paix et de justice. 

M. AnsLAN (Syrie) repond au representant du 
Guatemala, qui a declare que les Juifs auraient 
juridiquement un droit, dccoulant du Traite de 
Lausanne, a une patrie en Palestine. II estime 
que c'est la une opinion completement fausse 
et rappelle qu'a une precedente session de 
l'Assemblee, il a demande instamment que cette 
question fUt renvoyee a la Cour internationale 
de Justice. 

La seance est levee a 17 h. 05. 

DEUX-CENT-SIXIEME SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le fundi 22 novembre 1948, a 10 h. 30. 

President: M. A. CosTA nu RELS (Bolivie). 

689 

44 



75. Continuation of the discussion on the 
progress report of the United Nations 
Mediator on Palestine (A/648) 

Mr. PEARSON (Canada) considered that the 
present situation in Palestine was the result of 
a logical development of events from the time 
when the question was submitted to the United 
Nations, and gave a clue to what might be 
expected in the future. H e deplored the fact 
that the process had been interrupted by unneces­
sary violence. The basic recommendation of 
the United Nations Special Committee on Pales­
tine and of the General Assembly's resolution 
181 (II) of 29 November 1947 was that the two 
communities in Palestine should be given separate 
political existence. Despite the criticisms 
directed against the resolution, the Canadian 
delegation was sincerely convinced that partition 
was the only practicable alternative. While some 
form of unitary or federal State would, of course, 
have been preferable, there was no possibility of 
imposing political unity on the Arab and J ewish 
peoples in Palestine except in a form that would have 
been bitterly resisted by one side or the other. In 
the circumstances, partition was the best solution. 
The present conflict in Palestine was not the result 
of the partition decision but of the basic conflict 
between the Arabs and the J ews, which partition 
was intended to resolve. The critics of partition 
should ask themselves whether there would have 
been pe3.ce and order in Palestine if a unitary 
State had been forced upon the Jewish population 
or if the Assembly had made no recommendation 
at all. 

The Assembly's decision of 29 November had 
been based upon the assumptions that the Arab 
and Jewish communities would be able to co­
operate through a considerable measure of 
economic integration, and that the complicated 
distribution of territory between the two commu­
nities could be made workable. Whether or not 
those assumptions were justified was a matter for 
history to decide, but it was clear that, had they 
not been made, no decision could have been taken. 
It had been impossible to realize them because 
he conditions necessary for their fulfilment did 

not exist or rather, in certain respects, were not 
encouraged or permitted. It followed, therefore, 
that adjustments were necessary in the partition 
plan. It was regrettable only that the process 
of adjmtment had been confused and marked by 
violence. 

Mr. Pearson noted that the intervention of the 
United Nations in the Palestine situation had also 
been a factor in controlling the conflict. In 
particular, he considered that the Security 
Council truce and the work of mediation had consid­
erably influenced developments in Palestine. 
The presont task of the Assembly, as the Mediator 
had stated, was to take a firm position on the 
political problems. in the light of th~ exist~ng 
situation in Palestme and to find a solution which 
would be so reasonable as to discourage any 
attempt to defy it by armed force. 

690 

75. Suite de la discussion sur le Rapport 
interimaire du Mediateur des Na­
tions Unies pour la Palestine (A/648) 

l\1. PEARSON (Canada) estime que Ia situation 
actuelle en Palestine est le resultat logique des 
evenements qui se sont deroules a partir du 
moment oil Ia question a ete soumise a !'Organi­
sation des Nations Unies, et donne une indication 
sur r evolution a laquelle il faut s'attendre a 
l'avenir. M. Pearson regrette que le processus 
logique ait ete interrompu par des actes de 
violence inutiles. D'apres Ia recommandation de 
la Commission speciale des Nations Unies pour la 
Palestine et de l' Assemblee generale aux termes 
de la resolution 181 (II) du 29 novembre 1947, on 
devait conferer une existence politique distincte 
aux deux communautes de Palestine. Malgre les 
critiques dont fait l'objet Ia resolution du 
29 novembre 1947, la delegation du Canada est 
sincerement convaincue que le partage est la seule 
solution possible. Certes, un Etat unitaire ou 
federal aurait ete preferable, mais il n'est pas 
possible d'imposer l'unite politique aux peuples 
arabes et juif de Palestine, si ce n'est par des 
moyens qui auraient provoque Ia resistance 
acharnee des deux parties interessees. Dans ces 
circonstances, le partage est la meilleure solution. 
Le conflit qui se deroule actuellement en Palestine 
n'est pas le resultat de la decision relative au 
partage ; ce n'est que le prolongement du conflit 
fondamental entre Arabes et Juifs auquelle par­
tage a pour objet de mettre fin. Les critiques du 
plan de partage devraient se poser Ia question 
suivante : la paix et l'ordre auraient-ils regne en 
Palestine si un :Etat unitaire avait ete impose a la 
population juive ou si l'Assemblee n'avait fait 
aucune recommandation ? 

En prenant sa decision du 29 novembre 1947, 
l'Assemblee est partie de certains postulats; elle 
a cru que les communautes arabe et juive pour­
raient cooperer par le truchcment d'une etroite 
union economique et que le plan complique de 
partage du territoire entre les deux communautes 
etait r ealisable. L'histoire devra juger si l'on etait 
en droit d'etablir ces postulats, mais il est evident 
que s'ils n'avaient pas ete etablis, aucune decision 
n'aurait ete prise. S'ils se sont reveles errones, 
c'est que les conditions necessaires qu'ils pre­
supposaient ne se sont pas realisees, ou meme 
plutot qu'a certains egards, on n'a rien fait pour 
qu'ils se realisent ou qu'on s'y est oppose. II 
s'ensuit que ce plan de partage doit subir des 
retouches. II est regrettable que le processus 
d'adaptation aux conditions ait ete caracterise 
par la confusion et marque par Ia violence. 

M. Pearson fait observer que !'intervention de 
]'Organisation des Nations Unies en Palestine a, 
de plus, contribue a limiter le conflit. II esti~e en 
particulier que la treve imposee par le Conse1l de 
securite et le travail de mediation de !'Organisa­
tion des Nations Unies ont considerablement 
influence les evenements de Palestine. Comme l'a 
declare le Mediateur, l'Assemblee doit adopter, en 
ce qui concerne les problemes politiqu.es, ~ne 
attitude ferme tenant compte de la situatiOn 
actuelle et trouver une solution assez raisonnablc 
pour decourager toutes les tentatives qui pour­
raient etre faites en vue de s'y opposer par la 
force armee. 



In determining what further action should 
be taken the Assembly should base itself 
upon certain facts that had to be accepted. 
First, an independent Jewish State had come into 
being in accordance with the partition plan. 
Secondly, no indigenous Arab authority had 
emerged to assume the government of the area 
assigned to the Arabs. Thirdly, future territorial 
and political adjustments must be the result of 
the decisions of the peoples of Palestine themselves. 
They could arrive at those decisions either through 
direct negotiation or through the mediation of the 
United Nations but they, themselves, must take 
the final responsibility. To help reach such 
agreement, the United Nations should offer its 
good offices. The parties who refused to parti­
cipate in such negotiations or decisions would 
assume a very heavy responsibility. Fourth, the 
further process of settlement must be a peaceful 
one. The truce had prevented large-scale and 
continous war, and the Security Council had 
recently directed the parties to change the truce 
to an armistice (S/1080). 

Acceptance of the preceding analysis of the 
situation clearly placed heavy responsibilities on 
the Arab peoples of the Middle East. They 
would have to admit the futility of continuing to 
threaten the extinction of the Jewish State, and 
they must abandon their refusal to negotiate, 
directly or indirectly, with representatives of that 
State. The Provisional Government of Israel 
controlled a large part of Palestine and there 
seemed to be no likelihood that this control would 
be taken from them. Even if the Arabs sincerely 
held that this was an evil consequence of injustice 
committed against them thirty years ago they 
could not expect the United Nations to redress 
their alleged ancient wrongs in the light of recent 
history, especially when to do so would be to bring 
bitter reproaches that worse injustices were being 
created. Mr. Pearson was well aware that the 
fact of the existence of the Jewish State was 
difficult for the Arab States to accept, but the 
United Nations would be doing them no good 
service if it encouraged or permitted them to 
continue their efforts to destroy Israel by force 
of arms. 

On the other hand, the Jewish community must 
also make difficult decisions which would probably 
involve concessions. At present, their armies 
appeared to be in a position where they could, if 
they desired, establish control over the whole of 
Palestine. However, if they did so, they would 
be openly defying the wishes of the world commu­
nity, which had been clearly stated in the partition 
plan. 

The Assembly could not force the two commu­
nities to work together, but it could remind them 
persistently that that was what was intended and 
that if by their actions they destroyed all possi­
bility of co-operation, they would be going 
against the will of the United Nations. The 
Jewish community should realize that it could 
not have all the territory awarded it by the United 
Nations plus all the territory it had conquered. 
If the Jewish State were prepared to impose 

691 

Pour determiner les mesures qu'elle doit prendre 
a I'avenir, I'Assemblee doit partir de certains faits 
qui doivent etre admis comme tels. Premierement, 
un :Etat juif inctependant a ete cree conformement 
au plan de partage. Deuxiemement, aucune auto­
rite arabe locale n'est apparue pour assurer le 
gouvernement du territoire assigne aux Arabes. 
Troisiemement, Ies rectifications territoriales et 
politiques futures doivent etre decidees par Ies 
peuples de Palestine eux-memes. Ils peuvent 
parvenir a ces decisions soit au moyen de negocia­
tions directes, soit par I'intermediaire de !'Organi­
sation des Nations Unies, mais c'est a eux qu'il 
appartient d'en assumer la responsabilite finale. 
L'Organisation des Nations Unies doit offrir ses 
bons offices pour faciliter ces accords. La partie 
qui refuserait de participer a ces negociations ou 
de prendre ces decisions, assumerait une respon­
sabilite tres lourde. Quatriemement, le reglement 
des differends doit se faire dorenavant par des 
moyens pacifiques. La treve a empeche des 
hostilites de grande envergure et Ia prolongation 
du conflit, et le Conseil de securite a recemment 
ordonne aux parties interessees de transformer Ia 
treve en un armistice (S/1080). 

Demander aux peuples arabes du Moyen 
Orient qu'ils admettent les faits qui viennent 
d'etre exposes, c'est evidemment leur demander 
beaucoup. Ces peuples devront reconnaitre qu'il 
est futile de continuer a menacer d'aneantissement 
I'Etat d'Israel, et ils devront cesser de refuser de 
negocier, directement ou indirectement, avec les 
representants de cet Etat. Le Gouvernement 
provisoire d'Israel controle nne grande partie de 
la Palestine et il ne semble pas que ce controle 
soit susceptible de lui etre enleve. Les A.rabes 
estiment sincerement que c'est Ia nne consequence 
deplorable de !'injustice commise a leur egard il y 
a trente ans, mais ils ne peuvent attendre de 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies, qu'elle repare 
Ia vieille injustice qu'ils disent avoir subie : les 
recents evenements historiques s'y opposent et, 
de plus, si elle le faisait, elle se verrait accuser de 
commettre nne injustice plus grave encore. 
M. Pearson sait parfaitement qu'il est difficile 
aux Etats Arabes d'accepter le fait de !'existence 
d'un Etat juif, mais !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies ne leur rendra nullement un bon service si 
elle les encourage ou les laisse poursuivre leurs 
efforts en vue de detruire I'Etat d'Israel par la 
force des armes. 

La communaute juive aura, el!c aussi, des 
decisions difficiles a prendre, qui devront com­
porter probablement des concessions. A present, 
les armees d'Israel sont, semble-t-il, en assez 
bonne posture pour Ctablir, si elles le desiraient, 
leur controle sur Ia totalite de la Palestine. l\Iais 
si elles le faisaient, elles defieraient ouvertement 
Ia communaute mondiale, dont les vreux sont 
clairement indiques dans le plan de partage. 

L'Assemblee ne peut contraindre les deux 
communautes a cooperer, mais elle peut leur 
rappeler sans rehiche que c'est Ia ce qu'elle attend 
d'elles, et que si leurs actes reduisent a neant toute 
possibilite de cooperation, elles iront a I'encontre 
de la volontc de !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 
La communaute juive doit se rendre compte 
qu'elle ne pent avoir toutle territoire qui lui a ete 
accorde par !'Organisation des Nations Unies en 
y ajoutant tout le territoire qu'elle a conquis. Si 



limits on its demands, it had the right to ask, in 
return, for international recognition and for peace. 
The United Nations could hardly request it to 
take part in negotiations for a final settlement 
unless Israel was assured that the settlement 
would bring it peace. 

Mr. Pearson hoped that statesmanship rather 
than extremism would prevail in both the Arab 
and J ewish communities, and that the issue would 
he solved on an equitable basis in a spirit of wisdom 
and common sense. Recent Press reports indi­
cated that resources of statesmanship were being 
brought into play. He hoped that neither party 
would say to the United Nations that it was 
prepared to be statesmanlike only if the other 
adopted the same attitude because that was not 
the way in which to achieve a successful political 
understanding. If wisdom and sense prevailed, 
the Palestine problem could be solved. 

Mr. Pearson also considered that the estab­
lishment of peace in the Middle East was a 
matter of general international concern. If the 
present confusion were permitted to persist, the 
only beneficiaries would be the international forces 
of discord and revolution. The chief sufferers 
from the present fighting were the great mass of 
the Arab and J ewish population in Palestine. 
They were anxious for peace and, despite some 
of the statements which had been made in the 
First Committee, Mr. Pearson considered that 
this fact gave a better chance for the estab­
lishment of peace than had existed six months 
ago. 

Mr. Pearson hoped that the action of the 
Assembly would be based upon the following 
principles : first, recognition of the existence of a 
Jewish State ; second, creation of some United 
Nations body, perhaps a small commission as 
suggested in the United Kidgdom draft resolution 
(A/C.l /394) which would offer its good offices to 
the parties ; third, re-affirmation of the decision 
to establish international control of Jerusalem. 

With regard to the recognition of the Jewish 
State, Mr. Pearson thought that it might not be 
necessary to wait until its boundaries were 
finally determined. ·what was important was 
to know that the State that was recognized, and 
eligible for membership in the United Nations, 
had committed itself fully to the principles of 
peaceful settlement embodied in the Charter and 
had shown its acceptance of those principles by 
carrying out the truce and armistice directives of 
the Security Council. 

In respect of the second principle, namely, the 
establishment of an organ of good offices to assist 
the parties to settle their geographical problems 
and establish political relations, the Assembly 
should state its desire that it was now time to 
negotiate a final settlement and that this should 
be done within the framework of the truce and 
mediation arrangements which had been worked 
out by the Assembly and the Security Council. 

Mr. Pearson considered that the Un.ited 
Kinadom draft resolution (A/C.l/394) provided 

0 

l'Etat juif est dispose a mettre des bornes a ses 
exigences, il aura le droit de demander sa recon­
naissance officielle par tous les autres Etats ; il 
aurait egalement le droit de demander Ia paix. 
L'Organisation des Nations Unies ne peut guere 
lui demander de participer a des negociations en 
vue d'un reglement final, a moins qu'il ne re<;oive 
!'assurance que ce reglement lui apportera bien 
Ia paix. 

M. Pearson espere que c'est !'esprit de gouver­
nement, et non l'extremisme qui finira par pre­
valoir dans les communautes juive et arabe, et que 
le probleme sera resolu dans des conditions 
equitables grace a un esprit de sagesse et au bon 
sens. De recentes informations de presse indiquent 
que les ressources de !'esprit public sont mainte­
nant a l'ceuvre. II espere qu'aucune des parties ne 
dira a !'Organisation des Nations Unies qu'elle 
n'est disposee a faire preuve d'esprit public que si 
!'autre partie adopte Ia meme attitude. Ce n'est 
pas ainsi que l'on reussit a aboutir a !'entente en 
matiere politique. Le probleme palestinien sera 
resolu si la sagesse et le bon sens l'emportent. 

M. Pearson estime egalement que l'etablissement 
de la paix dans le Moyen Orient est un probleme 
qui interesse toute la communaute internationale. 
Si on laisse se poursuivre la confusion actuelle, les 
seuls beneficiaires en seront les forces internatio­
nales de discorde et de revolution. Les principales 
victimes du conflit actuel sont les populations 
arabes et juives de Palestine. Elles aspirent a Ia 
paix, et, en depit de certaines declarations faites 
devant la Premiere Commission, M. Pearson 
estime que ces aspirations offrent des possibilites 
de paix qui n'existaient pas il y a six mois. 

M. Pearson espere que !'action de l'Assemblee 
reposera sur les principes suivants : premierement, 
la reconnaissance de !'existence d'un Etat juif ; 
deuxiemement, la creation d'un organisme de 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies, peut-etre une 
commission restreinte, comme le suggere le projet 
de resolution du Royaume-Uni (A/C.lj394fRev.l), 
qui offrirait ses bans offices aux deux parties ; 
troisiemement, Ia reaffirmation de la decision 
d'etablir un controle international sur Jerusalem. 

En ce qui concerne Ia reconnaissance de l'Etat 
juif, M. Pearson estime qu'il n'est peut-etre pas 
indispensable d'attendre que les frontieres de cet 
Etat soient definitivement fixees. Ce qui importe, 
c'est de savoir si l'Etat qui aura ete reconnu, et, 
en tant que tel, sera susceptible d'etre admis a 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies, se sera engage 
pleinement a observer les principes de reglement 
pacifique contenus dans Ia Charte, et a montrer 
son acceptation de ces principes en executant les 
instructions du Conseil de securite en matiere de 
treve et d'armistice. 

En ce qui concerne le deuxieme principe, a 
savoir Ia creation d'une commission de bans 
offices, chargee d'aider les parties a regler leurs 
differends territoriaux et a nouer des relations 
politiques, l'Assemblee doit declarer que le moment 
de negocier un reglement definitif est venu et dire 
que ce reglement doit intervenir dans le cadre des 
accords de treve et de mediation elabores par 
1' Assemblee et le Conseil de securite. 

M. Pearson estime que le projet de resolution 
du Royaume-Uni (AjC.lj394JCorr. 1) constitue 

692 



a good general basis for discussion. He suggested, 
however, that it should be amended by broadening 
the functions of the conciliation commission 
proposed in paragraph 5 so that it would be in 
effect a commission of good offices whose task 
would be to bring about a settlement either through 
direct negotiation or by mediation. If that 
suggestion were adopted, the negotiations which 
the commission would initiate would have a wider 
scope than was now provided in paragraphs 3 and 5. 
The resolution should also include a statement that 
one of the primary functions of the commission 
would be to initiate negotiations and that those 
negotiations should take into consideration the 
Assembly resolution 181 (II) of 29 November 1947, 
the Mediator's report (A/648) and the existing 
situation in Palestine under the truce. 

Mr. BALAGUER (Dominican Republic) stated 
that his delegation had been one of the first to 
take a definite stand on the Palestine question 
following its submission to the United Nations, and 
that his Government's attitude was based on two 
standards. First, it was not in favour of 
abstaining from expressing its opinion on any 
problem involving international peace and the 
principles of justice on which the United Nations 
Charter was based. Secondly, the Dominican 
R epublic supported a policy which would be 
favourable to the Jewish people, who had been 
persecuted for thousands of years. It was 
perhaps the only country which after the last 
war, had established a Jewish colony within its 
territory enjoying full freedom and protection 
from the State. 

The Dominican Republic, however, kept in 
mind that there was another people in Palestine 
which also had inalienable rights, and was there­
fore glad that the General Assembly appeared to 
wish to solve the problem by conciliation. The 
first step in this direction had already been taken 
despite the viplence of the opposing views of the 
parties, by the admission to the First Committee 
on an equal basis not only of the representative 
of Israel, but also of a representative of the 
Arab population in Palestine. 

Mr. Balaguer did not think the Assembly should 
adhere strictly to the Mediator's conclusions ; it 
should work with more flexibility, leaving a margin 
for good sense, impartiality and justice. The 
General Assembly should not press for an imme­
diate solution of the controversial problems 
involved, such as the boundaries of the areas in 
dispute. The religious problem must be handled 
with care, and the lesser points of controversy 
should be left to a conciliation commission. 
However, the recognition of an Arab State in 
Palestine on a basis of equality with the Jewish 
State, which had been envisaged by Assembly 
resolution, 181 (II) would convince the Arab 
population that the Assembly did not wish to set 
aside its legitimate rights, and would therefore 
make the work of the conciliation commission less 
difficult. He expressed the hope that the views 
of such an Arab State might be concilatory. 

une base gencrale satisfaisante de discussion. 
Toutefois, il propose de !'amender en elargissant 
les fonctions de la commission de conciliation, 
dont la creation est proposce au paragraphe 5, de 
fa<;on qu'elle soit en n~alite une commission de 
bons offices dont Ia tache sera de provoquer un 
accord, soit par negociation directe, soit par 
mediation. Si cette suggestion est adoptee, les 
negociations entamees par la commission auront 
une portee plus large que ne le prevoient actuel­
Iement les paragraphes 3 et 5. La resolution doit 
egalement declarer que l'une des principales 
fonctions de la Commission sera de prendre 
!'initiative de negociations, et que ces negociations 
devront tenir compte de la resolution 181 (II) de 
l 'Assemblee du 29 novembre 1947 du rapport du 
Mediateur (A/648) et de la situation existant en 
Palestine en vertu de la treve. 

M. BALA.GUER (Republique Dominicaine) declare 
que sa delegation a ete une des premieres a 
prendre position nettement sur la question palesti­
nienne, apres que celle-ci eut ete portee devant 
!'Organisation des Nations Unies, et que I' attitude 
de son Gouvernement procede de deux principes : 
premierement, il estime qu'il doit exprimer son 
opinion sur tout probleme qui interesse la paix 
internationale et les principes de justice sur 
lesquels repose la Charte des Nations Unies ; 
deuxiemement, la Republique Dominicaine pen­
cherait pour une politique favorable au peuple 
juif, qu'on persecute depuis des milliers d'annees. 
Elle est peut-etre le seul pays qui, a pres la derniere 
guerre, ait permis a une colonie juive de s'etablir 
sur son territoire, en toute Iiberte et sous la 
protection de I'Etat. 

Toutefois, la Republique Dominicaine ne saurait 
oublier qu'il existe en Palestine un autre pcuple 
qui a, lui aussi, des droits inalienables ; elle se 
felicite, par consequent, de ce que 1' Assemblee 
generale semble vouloir s'efforcer de resoudre le 
probleme par Ia conciliation. L'Assemblee a deja 

'fait le premier pas dans cette voie, malgre les vues 
violemment opposees des deux parties, en admet­
tant a Ia Commission, sur un pied d'egalite, non 
seulement le representant de l'Etat d'Israel, mais 
encore un representant de la population arabe de 
Palestine. 

M. Balaguer pense que l'Assemblee, au lieu 
de s'en tenir strictement aux conclusions du 
Mediateur, devrait apporter plus de souplesse a son 
travail, en laissant de la marge pour lc bon sens, 
l'impartialite et I' esprit de justice. L' Assemblee 
generale ne devrait pas exiger une solution 
immediate des questions litigieuses telles que 
les limites des sccteurs qu'on se dispute. 11 importe 
aussi d'aborder avec prudence le probleme 
religieux et de s'en remettre a une commission de 
conciliation du so in de rcsoudre les points lWgieux 
secondaires. Toutefois, la reconnaissance d'un 
Etat arabc en Palestine, sur un pied d'egalitc 
avec l'Etat juif, ainsi que l'envisageait la reso­
lution 181 (II) de l'Assemblee, convaincrait 
la population arabe que l'Assemblee ne veut 
nullcment ecarter ses droits legitimes; cette 
reconnaissance faciliterait par consequent la 
tache de la Commission de conciliation. l\L Bala­
guer espere qu'un tel Etat arabe saura se montrer 
conciliant. 



~~ s~id tha~ his Government had given him 
special mstructwns to support not only that part 
of the United Kingdom draft resolution which 
provided for Jerusalem to be accorded separate 
treatment from the rest of Palestine, but also any 
proposal which would place all the Christian Holy 
Places under a special legal regime. Recalling the 
concern of the Syrian representative that certain 
Christian Holy Places in Galilee would be under 
the control of Israel, he said that his delegation 
would support any proposal to place all Holy 
Places under international supervision. He 
concluded with an expression of hope that peace 
would come to Palestine through the under­
standing and conciliatory spirit of the parties. 

Mr. TsARAPKIN (Union of Soviet Socialist 
Republics) recalled that the continuous struggle 
between the Jews and Arabs in Palestine had 
forced the United Kingdom to place the Palestine 
question before the United Nations. After 
thorough consideration, the General Assembly had 
adopted a decision on 29 November 1947 [reso­
lution 181 (II)] regarding the termination of 
the United Kingdom Mandate and the creation of 
separate Arab and Jewish States in Palestine. 
There was no doubt that this was the only right 
and equitable solution and that it was in conform­
ity with the interests of both the Arabs and the 
Jews, both of whom had a right to self-determin­
ation. The majority of members of the Security 
Council, instead of implementing this decision as 
instructed, was diverted by the United States and 
the United Kingdom into calling a special session 
of the General Assembly for reconsideration of 
the Palestine question. Having rejected the 
United States suggestions for a United Nations 
trusteeship, the Assembly, under pressure from 
the United States and United Kingdom dele­
gations, created the position of a Mediator, 
imiting his powers to the strict sense of the word, 

The Mediator, instead of limiting himself to his 
functions in implementing the truce and in assisting 
a settlement by peaceful means, went beyond his 
terms of reference and, in implementing the will 
of those who shaped his activities, submitted a 
new plan in an attempt to replace the Assembly's 
decision of 29 November. This new proposal 
presented in June would have created a Union in 
Palestine including Transjordan, and since the 
latter country was dominated by the United 
Kinadom, would have given control of Palestine 
to the United Kingdom. This new plan was 
rejected by both par~ies and ~rought dam~ge to 
the prestige of the Umte~ Natwns. When .It was 
later published (S /863), It left no doubt m the 
mind of the public that the plan had been prepared 
in the British Foreign Office, and events had borne 
out this fact. The aims of the United Stat~s and 
the United Kingdom were to prevent t~e Imple­
mentation of the 2~ Nove~ber resolution •. and 
it was this policy which had mcreased the ammos­
ity between Jews and Arabs. and pu.shed the 
latter into military adventures m Palestm~. ~he 
military operations created a dangerous Situation 

694 

Le Gouvernement de la Republique Domi 
nicaine lui a particulierement recommande 
d'appuyer, non seulement la partie du projet de 
resolution du Royaume-Uni qui prevoit pour 
Jerusalem un statut distinct de celui du reste de 
la Palestine, mais encore toute proposition qui 
placerait tous les Lieux saints chretiens sous un 
regime juridique special. Rappelant que le 
representant de la Syrie s'est inquiete a l'idee que 
certains Lieux saints chretiens de Galilee 
pourraient passer sous l'autorite de l'Etat d'Israel, 
M. Balaguer declare que sa delegation appuiera 
toute proposition visant a placer taus les Lieux 
saints sous surveillance internationale. Pour 
conclure, il exprime I'espoir que la Palestine 
trouvera la paix, grace a !'esprit de compre­
hension et de conciliation des parties en presence. 

M. TsARAPKINE (Union des Republiques socia­
listes sovietiques) rappelle que la lutte continuelle 
entre les Juifs et les Arabes en Palestine a oblige 
le Royaume-Uni a saisir de la question pales­
tinienne !'Organisation des Nations Unies. Apres 
une etude approfondie du probleme, l'Assemblee 
generale a, le 29 novembre 194 7 [resolution 
181 (II)], adopte une decision relative a Ia 
cessation du Mandat du Royaume-Uni et a la 
creation en Palestine d'un Etat arabe ct d'un 
Etat juif distincts. C'est la, sans aucun doute, la 
seule solution juste et equitable, et une solution 
qui, en outre, est conforme aux interets tant des 
Arabes que des Juifs, ces deux peuples ayant un 
droit egal a disposer d'eux-memes. Or, au lieu 
de faire appliquer cette decision, conformement 
aux instructions re<;ues, Ia majorite des membres 
du Conseil de securite s'est Iaisse persuader par 
les Etats-Unis et le Royaume-Uni de convoqucr 
nne session extraordinaire de l'Assemblee gene­
rale en vue d'un nouvel examen de la question 
palestinienne. Ayant repousse les suggestions des 
Etats-Unis tendant a faire placer la Palestine 
sous la tutelle de !'Organisation des Nations 
Unies, l'Assemblee, sous Ia pression des delegations 
des Etats-Unis et du Royaume-Uni, cn\a le paste 
de Mectiateur, en limitant strictement les pouvoirs 
de celui-ci. 

Mais, au lieu de se horner a exercer les fonctions 
qui lui incombaient, c'est-a-dire a faire appliquer 
la treve et a aider a regler la question par des 
moyens pacifiques, le Mediateur a outrepasse son 
mandat et, executant Ia volonte de ceux qui 
lui tra<;aient sa ligne de conduite, a presente un 
nouveau plan, qui, dans son esprit, devait se 
substituer a Ia decision de l'Assemblee en date du 
29 novembre. Aux termcs de cette nouvelle propo­
sition, presentee en juin dernier, on aurait cree 
une Union palestinienne, qui aurait compris la 
Transjordanie, et, comme cette derniere est sons 
le contr6le du Royaume-Uni, c'estle Royaume-Uni 
qui aurait domine en Palestine. Ce nouveau plan 
fut, toutefois, rcpousse par les deux parties et 
fit du tort a !'Organisation des Nations Unies. 
Quand, par la suite, il fut publie (S /863), !'opinion 
publique ne douta pas qu'il n'eut ete mis au point 
au Foreign Office, ce que les evenements vinrent 
confirmer. Le but des Etats-Unis et du Royaume­
Uni est d'empecher la mise en application de la 
resolution du 29 novembre ; c'est cette politique 
qui a accru l'animosite entre les Juifs et les Arabes 
et qui a lance ces derniers dans une aventure 



for peace and security in the Near East and led 
to serious loss of life and to hardship and suffering. 

The proposals contained in the Mediator's 
report to the General Assembly (A/648) were 
essentially a repetition of those which had been 
rejected by both parties in June. The only formal 
difference was that he now recognized the existence 
of the Jewish State, which in fact exercised 
sovereignty over the whole of the territory assigned 
to it by the Assembly's resolution. The Mediator, 
however, proposed a reshuffling of territory which 
would jeopardize the very life of the Jewish State 
by giving the Negeb (which was two-thirds of the 
Jewish State) to Transjordan, although he offered 
the Jewish State ·western Galilee as compensation. 
Such a proposal, which the Mediator knew would 
not be accepted by either party, and which he 
therefore proposed to force upon them, had as 
its purpose the increase of conflict between the 
Arabs and Jews and of dissension, among the Arab 
States. The only justification which the Mediator 
gave for this proposal was that the situation in 
Palestine was ripe for a United Nations decision on 
the Palestine question. There was no basis for 
his conclusion since none of the parties concerned 
agreed. The Mediator's proposals were clearly 
contrary to the Assembly's decision and were a 
result of the policy of the United Kingdom and the 
United States to try to strengthen their influence 
in the Middle East. It was a new attempt to 
impose a decision on the United Nations in the 
interests of the American and British General Staffs 
and oil monopolies. It was directly contrary to 
the interests of the peoples concerned and could 
ntlt be accepted. 

Mr. Tsarapkin thought it was clear that the 
United Kingdom wished to reverse the Assembly's 
decision of 29 November in order to ensure its 
control over the whole of Palestine. When it had 
become obvious that the Jewish State was estab­
lished, the British position changed and it tried 
to keep the greater part of Palestine under British 
control through Transjordan. The Mediator's 
proposal coincided surprisingly with the British 
position. Mr. Tsarapkin recalled a letter from 
General Clayton to Count Bernadotte offering his 
own plan for setting up an Arab State in Palestine 
under King Abdullah. If this plan proved unac­
ceptable to the Jews, it was suggested that the 
parties might accept the status of dominions, and 
if this was also unacceptable, the boundaries 
provided by the plan of partition should be altered 
to transfer some territory from the Jewish to the 
Arab State. Mr. Tsarapkin thought it was 
clear that the Mediator's proposal followed these 
suggestions, and he quoted the enthusiastic 
support to the Mediator's plan given by Mr. Bevin 
in the General Assembly and Mr. McNeil in the 
First Committee. He recalled that the latter 
had tried to prove that the Negeb was not of 
much value and that Western Galilee would be 
more advantageous to the Jews, but he thought it 

militaire en Palestine. Les operations militaire~ 
compromettent la paix et la securite dans le 
Moyen Orient, entrainent des pertcs serieuses en 
vues humaines ct causent des tribulations ct de~ 
souffrances aux populations. 

Les propositions contenues dans le rapport du 
Mcdiateur a J'Assemblee gcncrale (A /648) soot 
esscntiellement les memes que celles qui ont ete 
rejctees en juin par les deux parties. La seule 
difference formelle est que le Mediateur reconnait 
maintenant !'existence d'un Etat juif qui exerce, 
en fait, sa souverainete sur toutle territoire qui lui 
revient aux t ermes de la resolution de l'Assemblee 
generale. Toutefois, le Mediatcur propose une 
nouvelle repartition du territoire, qui mettrait 
en danger !'existence meme de l'Etat juif en don­
nant le Negeb (qui represente les deux tiers du 
territoire de r:Etat juif) a la Transjordanie, alor~ 
qu'il offre a l'Etat juif la Galilee occidentale, a 
titre de compensation. Le Mediateur savait que 
cette proposition serait rejetee par les deux 
parties ; il a done propose de la leur imposer. Le 
but de cette proposition est d'aggraver le conflit 
qui oppose les Juifs aux Arabes et d'accentuer la 
rivalite entre les Etats arabes. Le seul argument 
que le Mediateur ait invoque a l'appui de sa propo­
sition est que l'heure est venue ou la situation en 
Palestine appelle une decision de la part de !'Orga­
nisation des Nations Unies. Sa conclusion est 
denuee de tout fondement puisqu'aucune de11 
parties n'a accepte ses propositions. Les propo­
sitions du Mediateur soot nettement incompatible11 
avec les decisions prises par l' Assemblee generale 
et sont l'aboutissement de la politique que 
menent le Royaume-Uni et les Etats-Unis en 
vue de renforcer leur influence au Moyen Orient. 
Elles representent une nouvelle tentative pour 
imposer une decision a !'Organisation des Natiom 
Unies dans l'interet des monopoles petrolien 
et des etats-majors des Etats-Unis et du Royaume­
Uni. Ces propositions portent directement atteinte 
aux interets des populations en question et soot 
inacceptables. 

M. Tsarapkine pense que, afin de s'assurer le 
controle de toute la Palestine, le Royaume-Uni 
veut, de toute evidence, faire annuler la decision 
prise par l'Assemblee generale le 29 Novembre. 
Lorsqu'il s'est avere que l'Etat juif etait constitue, 
le Royaume-Uni a modifie sa position et s'est 
efforce de maintenir son autorite sur la plus grande 
partie possible du territoire palestinien par l'inter­
mediaire de la Transjordanie. La proposition du 
Mediateur correspond d'une maniere saisissante 
a l'attitude du Royaume-Uni. M. Tsarapkine 
rappelle que le general Clayton a envoye une lettre 
au comte Bernadotte, dans laquelle il propose un 
plan personnel visant la creation d'un :Etat arabe 
en Palestine sous l'autorite du roi Abdullah. II 
suggere, au cas ou les Juifs n'accepteraient pas 
ce projet, que I' on demande aux parties d'accepter 
un statut de dominion, et, au cas ou cette solution 
ne serait pas non plus acceptee, de modifier le~ 
fronticres prevues dans le plan de partage de 
maniere a transferer des territoires de l'Etat juif 
a l'Etat arabe. II est evident, pense l\1. Tsarapkine, 
que Ja proposition du Mediateur s'inspire de ce~ 
suggestions; l'orateur rappelle avec quel enthou­
siasme M. Bevin, a l' Assemblee generalc, et 
M. McNeil, a Ia Premiere Commission, ont appuyc 
le plan du Mediateur. M. McNeil, dit-il, s'est 

695 



' ·'+. 

was a strange solicitude for the Jews to ask 
them to accept this small area in exchange, and 
then to offer the Negeb to Transjordan which 
already had enough desert. He noted that the 
United States representative had also accepted 
Count Bernadotte's proposals, all of which 
proved that they were in the interests of British 
and American monopolies. The Mediator's pro­
posals would not contribute to a solution of the 
problem but only to the continuance of the war 
in Palestine, which was creating a threat to 
peace in the Middle East. One of the proofs 
was that the Arabs themselves disagreed on the 
proposals. 

Mr. Tsarapkin pointed out that almost half of 
Palestine was at present occupied by Trans­
jordan's Arab Legion which was really controlled 
by the British through Glubb Pasha and his 
officers. The insistence of the United Kingdom 
on the need for haste in adopting the Mediator's 
proposals could be explained by the United 
Kingdom's desire to avoid an independent Arab 
State in Palestine and to establish there a Trans­
jordan Kingdom, which would include the Negeb. 

The continued manreuvers of the United States 
delegation and its association with the United 
Kingdom delegation in support of the Mediator's 
proposals showed that the policy of the United 
States and the United Kingdom was one of self­
interest and was not aimed at a peaceful settle­
ment. This policy only pushed the parties 
towards armed conflict ; yet when the situation 
was not satisfactory to the implementation of 
their scheme, the Anglo-American bloc in the 
Security Council had attempted to invoke 
Chapter VII of the Charter. Their actions were 
in contradiction with their assurances, and had 
led to the failure in Palestine and the continuation 
of the war between Arabs and Jews. There was 
no doubt that if the United States and United 
Kingdom had tried to promote the implementation 
of the Assembly's decision of 29 November in 
accordance with their duty as United Nations 
Members, a peaceful solution would have been 
achieved. The Arab States were finally coming 
to this conclusion themselves as could be seen by 
King Abdullah's statement to Kenneth Bilby of 
the New York Herald Tribune on 17 November 
that, if the Arabs and Jews had not been subjected 
to intervention in their affairs, they might not 
have fought, and that the war in Palestine would 
give no advantage either to the Jews or the Arabs. 
The USSR delegation agreed with this statement, 
with the amendment that the invasion of Pales­
tine had been entirely disadvantageous to both 
parties. . . 

In view of the above consideratiOns, the USSR 
delegation considered that the Resolution of 
29 November must be substantially implemented, 
and that this implementation corresponded with 
the interests of both the Arabs and Jews in Pales­
tine since it recognized their right to self-deter­
min~tion and independence. Events in Palestine 
had borne out the correctness of the USS_R ~ositi~n 
on Palestine ; it had been based on pnnciples Ill 

efforce de prouver que le Negeb ne presentait pas 
grand interet et que la Galilee occidentale serait 
plus profitable aux Juifs; M. Tsarapkine estime 
neanmoins que c'est faire preuve d'une etrange 
sollicitude a l'egard des Juifs que de leur demander 
d'accepter ce petit territoire en echange, et d'offrir 
le Negeb a la Transjordanie qui est deja assez 
pourvue en territoires desertiques. Il fait observer 
que le representant des Etats-Unis a egalement 
accepte les propositions du comte Bernadotte qui 
s'averent toutes repondre aux interets des mono­
poles britanniques et americains. Les propositions 
du Mediateur ne faciliteraient pas la solution du 
probleme ; elles ne feraient que prolonger la guerre 
en Palestine, ce qui constitue une menace a la 
paix dans le Moyen Orient. Le fait que les Arabes 
eux-memes n'acceptent pas ces propositions milite 
en faveur de cette conclusion. 

l\1. Tsarapkine fait observer que la Legion arabe 
de Transjordanie occupe actuellement presque la 
moitie du territoire de la Palestine ; cette Legion 
arabe est, en fait, sous le controle du Royaume­
Uni, par l'intermediaire de Glubb Pacha et de ses 
offi.ciers. L'insistance avec laquelle le Royaume­
Uni souligne la necessite d'adopter au plus vite les 
propositions du Mediateur s'explique par le desir 
de ce pays d'eviter la formation d'un Etat arabe 
independant en Palestine et de reunir le pays, y 
compris le Negeb, au royaume de Transjordanie. 

Les manreuvres continuelles de la delegation 
des Etats-Unis et le fait qu'elle se joint a la 
delegation du Royaume-Uni pour appuyer les 
propositions du MCdiateur prouvent que ces deux 
pays suivent une politique purement ego!ste, dont 
le but n'est pas de parvenir a un reglement paci­
fique. Cette politique ne fait qu'inciter les parties 
a entrer en conflit arme ; et pourtant, lorsque la 
situation n'etait pas propice a la mise en reuvre 
de ses projets, le bloc anglo-americain au Conseil 
de securite a tente d'invoquer les dispositions du 
Chapitre VII de la Charte. Leurs actes contre­
disaient les assurances qu'ils avaient donnees et 
ont ete la cause de l'echec enregistre en Palestine 
et de la poursuite des hostilites. Il est certain que 
l'on serait parvenu a une solution pacifique si les 
Etats-Unis et le Royaume-Uni s'etaient efiorces 
de favoriser la mise a execution de la resolution de 
l'Assemblce gcnerale du 29 novembre, confor­
mement a leurs obligations en taut que Membres 
de !'Organisation. Les Etats arabes, eux-memes, 
en venaient finalement a cette conclusion, ainsi 
que le temoigne la declaration que le roi Abdullah 
a faite le 17 novembre aM. Kenneth Bilby, corres­
pondant du New York Herald Tribune; il a 
declare que sans !'ingerence ctrangere dans leurs 
affaires, les Arabes et les Juifs ne se seraient peut­
etre pas fait Ia guerre et que la guerre en Palestine 
ne profitera ni aux Juifs ni aux Arabes. La delE!­
gation de l'URSS approuve ce point de vue, en 
ajoutant meme que !'invasion de la Palesti1_1e a ete 
extremement prejudiciable aux deux parties. 

Pour les raisons qui viennent d'etre exposees, la 
delegation de l'URSS estime qu'il faut mettre 
effectivement en reuvre la resolution du 
29 novembre ; elle estime egalement que cette 
mesure repond aux inten~ts taut des Arabes que 
des Juifs, car elle reconnait leur droit a disposer 
d'eux-memes, ainsi que leur droit a l'independanc~. 
Les evenements ont prouvc que l'URSS avmt 
adopte !'attitude qui convenait en ce qui concerne 

696 



accord with the interests of the people of Palestine, 
the interests of the maintenance of peace and 
security, and the provisions of the Charter. The 
USSR delegation regarded the proposals of the 
Mediator concerning demilitarized zones as not 
preventing the possibility of the resumption of 
military action. In order to establish peace in 
Palestine, it was necessary to withdraw all 
foreign armed forces from the territory of the 
Jewish and Arab States which had been created by 
the Assembly's decision. The USSR delegation 
considered that these measures must be taken 
immediately to present any further military 
action. 

No other representatives were prepared to 
speak and the CHAIHMA'< adjourned the meeting. 

The meeting rose at 12 noon. 

TWO HUNDRED 
AND SEVENTH MEETING 

Held at the Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
on Monday, 22 November 1948, at 3 p.m. 

Chairman ; Mr. CosTA nu RELS (Bolivia). 

76. Continuation of the 
the progress report 
Nations Mediator 
(A/648~ 

discussion on 
of the United 
on Palestine 

Mr. CATTAN (Arab Higher Committee) stated 
that, as experience had shown, partition could 
not provide a solution for the Palestine problem. 
In fact, that alleged solution had only resulted 
in chaos and massacre. \Vith regard to the 
recent mediation effort, the facts - which Jewish 
control over information media had tried to 
suppress - would have to be studied before the 
results of that effort could be assessed, or a 
considered opinion on the Mediator's proposals 
be given. 

Some 750,000 Arabs living in Palestine for 
centuries had been driven out, stripped of their 
possessions and reduced to the status of refugees, 
whilst their houses had been destroyed and 
pillaged. Even the Holy Places had been 
profaned. 

Firstly, as regards the problem of refugees, 
who would believe that hundreds of thousands 
of people had left the country of their own 
free will, abandoning all their goods, because 
they had been asked to do so by the represen­
tatives of the Arab Higher Committee or of 
certain Arab States ? vVas there any need to 
dwell on the fact that the Jewish representative 
who presented that falsified version of the 
facts proposed, not that the refugees should 
return to their homes, but that they should 
be given shelter in other Arab countries ? 

What did the Mediator's report say on that 
question ? It stated that the exodus had 
resulted from panic created by the fighting, 
by rumours concerning acts of terrorism, and by 
measures of expulsion. The phrase " panic 
created by the fighting " was not a true reflection 

la Palestine, attitude fpndee sur des principes 
favorables aux inten~ts de la population de la 
Palestine, et au maintien de la paix et de la 
securite, et conformes aux dispositions de la 
Charte. La delegation de l'URSS considere que les 
propositions du Mediateur relatives aux zones 
demilitarisees n'empecheront pas une reprise 
eventuelle des hostilites. Pour retablir la paix en 
Palestine, il est indispensable de retirer toutes les 
forces armees etrangeres du territoire de l'Etat 
juif et de l'Etat arabe, Etats dont la creation est 
prevue par la decision de l'Assemblee generale du 
29 novembre 1947. La delegation de l'URSS 
considere qu'il faut prendre ces mesures sans delai 
si I' on veut faire cesser toutes operations militaires. 

Aucun autre representant ne demandant a 
prendre la parole, le Pm;:SIDENT decide de sus­
pendre la seance. 

La seance est levee a 12 heures. 

DEUX-CENT-SEPTIEME SEANCE 

Tenue au Palais de Chaillot, Paris, 
le lundi 22 novembre 1948, a 15 heures. 

President: M. A. CosTA nu RELS (Bolivie). 

76. Suite de la discussion sur le rapport 
interimaire duMediateur des Nations 
Unies pour la Palestine (A/648) 

M. CATTAN (Haut-Comite arabe) declare que, 
comme !'experience l'a montre, Ie partage ne 
saurait constituer une solution au probleme 
palestinien. En efiet, cette pretendue solution n'a 
fait que provoquer le chaos et le massacre. 
Quant a la recente tentative de mediation, on 
nc pent juger ses resultats et se prononcer en 
connaissance de cause sur les propositions du 
Mediateur sans etudier les faits que l'emprise 
juive sur les moyens d'information a tente 
d'etouffer. 

Quelque 750.000 arabes etablis depuis des 
siecles ont ete chasses, devalises et reduits a 
n'etre plus que des refugies prives de tout, tandis 
que leurs maisons etaient detruites et pillees. 
Les Lieux saints eux-memes ont ete profanes. 

En ce qui concerne tout d'abord le probleme 
des refugies, a qui fera-t-on croire que des centaines 
de milliers d'habitants aient quitte le pays de 
leur propre gre en abandonnant tous leurs biens 
parce qu'ils en avaient ete pries par les repre­
sentants du Haut-Comite arabe ou de certains 
:Etats arabes ? Faut-il souligner que le repre­
sentant juif qui a presente cette version menson­
gere des faits propose non pas que ces refugies 
rentrent dans leurs foyers, mais bien qu'ils soient 
accueillis dans d'autres pays arabes. 

Que dit sur ce point le rapport du l\Iediateur? 
Il declare que l'exode a ete cause a la fois par la 
panique provoquee par les combats, les rumeurs 
qui couraient au sujet d'actes de terrorisme, 
et aussi par les mesures d'expulsion. L'expression : 
« panique provoquee par les combats » ne reflete 

697 




